
Sr. Section Clause 

No

Existing Text of the clause/provision in the RFP Clarification/ modification sought DIT Response

1 Objectives 2.2 The Data Centre Operator‟s actions are in 

compliance with laid down policies, standards, 

procedures, and applicable laws and regulations

While talking about 'laid down policies….', is DIT referring 

to any specific standards, Guidelines or processes, or it's 

only a simple reference to the contract signed between 

DCO and SIA?

The DCO's actions should comply with the Scope of 

Work, Contract Term & Conditions and Service level 

Agreements with respective State Nodal Agencies

2 Scope of Work 2.4.1 Audit Activities - Will the Disaster Recovery site for the SDC also be in 

scope of TPA?

- If yes, please provide the number of  of DR sites to be 

considered as part of scope of work.

- Is the scope limited to location of data centre or 

locations other than the data center such as Network 

Operation center of SWAN, government offices etc are 

also part of the scope?

The DR site will not be the responsibility of TPA.

The Scope is limited to the State Data Centre and it 

does not include SWAn or any other government 

offices

3 SDC 

Infrastructure 

Audit

2.4.2.a TPA shall undertake audit for physical and IT 

infrastructure including verification of 

completeness of inventory and asset bill of 

material for the State Data Center.

Does TPA work start only after full commissioning of the 

State Data Center,  or  will TPA be involved in the SDC 

acceptance tests as well?

TPA work Starts after completion of the SDC.

4 Operations and 

Management 

Process and 

Control Audit

2.4.3 The TPA would audit the overall physical and IT 

infrastructure management processes as per 

the ISO 20000 framework

Is TPA expected to refer ISO 20000 and ISO 27001 

standards as guidelines.  Are SDC's ISO 20000 and ISO 

27001 certified?

Both  ISO 20000 and ISO 27001 standards need to be 

followed. And SDC's are being certified with both the 

certifications

5 SLA Monitoring 

Audit

2.4.4.e TPA audit will also verify the parameters of the 

SLA, which cannot be monitoring using 

BMS/EMS

Kindly elaborate on which parameters are not monitored 

by BMS / EMS which TPA will have to verify. Is it possible 

to give now the draft contract copy between SIA and DCO 

to TPA? This will help us in understanding our SOW in 

better manner

There are various parameters which can not be 

monitored by EMS and BMS such as:

Asset Register

Material Movement Register

Maintianance Regiesters

Duty register

etc…

The Scope of work in available in the State SDC RFPs. 

The contract copy shall be made available only after 

selection of a TPA in a specific State.

6 SLA Monitoring 

Audit

2.4.4. d TPA shall review the SLA performance on 

quarterly basis

Does this clause expect TPA to do daily performance 

monitoring or refer only to the quarterly audit?

Please refer to Form -7.  It says, "At least two 

qualified resources with minimum qualification are 

required to be positioned at respective State/UT for 

the entire duration of 5 years."
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7 Security and 

Compliance Audit

2.4.5. c TPA shall conduct the vulnerability assessment 

& penetration testing on the identified 

components and share the results with 

respective state/UT

Is it possible to specify those Identified components. It will 

give us better understanding of Scope of Work

The Scope of work in available in the State SDC RFPs. 

8 SLA Monitoring 

Audit

2.4.4 EMS/BMS Are EMS and BMS integrated systems? What are the 

EMS/BMS generally used in various SDCs.

No. EMS and BMS are two Separate Systems. And 

EMS/ BMS are avialable in SDC from all the leading 

vendors. 

9 Deliverables for 

TPA

2.6.1 Ensure mapping of the SLA conditions and limits 

on to EMS

Is TPA expected to ensure that DCO maps the SLA 

conditions and limits on to EMS or TPA has to map limits 

and conditions on to EMS

TPA expected to ensure that DCO maps the SLA 

conditions and limits on to EMS

10 Deliverables for 

TPA

2.6.2 SDC Infrastructure Audit What are the components of the physical & IT 

infrastructure of the SDC in general. It will give us good 

idea about quantum of work TPA needs to do.

Please refer to the State Data Centre RFPs

11 Important 

Information to 

the Bidders

3.1.5 Ernest Money Deposit (EMD) : The Bidders shall 

furnish, Earnest Money Deposit (EMD) of Rs. 

10,00,000.00 (Rupees Ten Lakhs only) in the 

form of demand draft/banker‟s cheque/bank 

guarantee, from any scheduled Indian bank 

valid for 6 months, drawn in favor of “Pay and 

Accounts officer , Department of Information 

technology” payable at New Delhi.

Please share the 'Bank Guarantee' format. EMD should be in the form of demand 

draft/banker‟s cheque/bank guarantee, from any 

scheduled Indian bank valid for 6 months. There is 

no specific format for the Same.

12 Prequalification 4.1.6 The bidder should have successfully completed 

minimum two IT audit assignments in last two 

years (2008-09, 2009-10), each with audit fees 

value not less than Rs. 25 lakh. Projects which 

are under progress shall also be considered. 

Projects executed within the Agency‟s own 

company, group of companies or Joint Venture 

companies shall not be considered.

Since, the year 2010-11 has also completed, are the 

projects executed in Financial Year 2010-11 admissible?

Yes, It would be reflected in the corrigendum.

13 Technial 

Evaluation

5.2.A.5 Offices in number of states Are bidders required to furnish the details of registered 

offices only, or the locations with Project Offices will also 

be considered?

Bidders required to furnish the details of registered 

offices only with registration proof.

14 Conditions of 

Empanelment 

Contract

7 The payment to the TPA shall be on 6 monthly 

basis subject to satisfactory assessment done by 

STQC

Pl. let us know the assessment methodology that will be 

used by STQC for assessment of TPA

The assessment would be based on the Scope of 

Work of the TPA as specified in the RFP and the 

contract to be signed between State and the TPA.

15 Resource 

Template

Form 5. B Does IT audit constitute Data centre audit, Security Audit, 

IT Process Audit, IT Infrastructure Audit, SLA Monitoring 

Audit, SLA Audit etc. Pl. Clarify

The Scope of work is defined in the RFP.

16 No. Of Additional 

TPA Agencies

1.7 Although 3 agencies are empanelled, further 

few more agencies would be empanelled.

How many more agencies would be empanelled. DIT reserves the right to decide on the no. of 

agencies to be empanelled. However, since 5 

agencies were to be empanelled originally, 2 

agnecies would at least be empanelled.



17 Turnover from IT 

Audit Services

Form-3 The bidder must have annual turnover of 

minimum Rs. 100 Crores in each of the 

following three financial years: 2007-08, 2008-

09, 2009-10 and an aggregated turnover of 

minimum Rs. 15 Crores from IT Audit services in 

following three financial years: 2007-08, 2008-

09, 2009-10. 

For IT turnover, will a certificate stating that the turnover 

exceeds Rs. 15 crores be sufficient?

It would be sufficient to provide such certificate 

from a statutory auditor. But,in this case, the points 

alloted during technical evaluation will be minimum, 

corresponding to the turnover of 15 crores.

18 Certificate from 

the Statutory 

Auditor

Form-3 The bidder must have annual turnover of 

minimum Rs. 100 Crores in each of the 

following three financial years: 2007-08, 2008-

09, 2009-10 and an aggregated turnover of 

minimum Rs. 15 Crores from IT Audit services in 

following three financial years: 2007-08, 2008-

09, 2009-10. 

Will it be sufficient to certify that the bidder has received 

purchase orders instead of Payments?

It would be sufficient to provide a certificate of 

Annual turnover from a statutory auditor. Same 

would be reflected in the corrigendum.

19 IT Audit 

Assignment 

Evaluation 

Criteria

5.2.2 Audit experience in terms of number of 

completed assignments/projects in last five 

years with a minimum order value of Rs. 25 

Lakh would be evaluated based on following 

parameters. Projects which are under progress 

shall also be considered. 

Do the bidders also need to submit the evidences to 

establish such assignment has been undertaken for all the 

engagements which will be listed under the requirement 

of this clause?  It is not explicitly mentioned in the RFP

Yes, Pls refer to "Reference Details" column of  

clause 6 in the Pre-Qualification table in section 4.1.

20 Certificate from 

the Statutory 

Auditor

Form-3 Certificate for the financial capacity of the 

responding firm from a Statutory Auditor

Will it be fine if Chief Financial Officer provides this 

certificate instead of a statutory Auditor

No. The statutory auditor needs to provide the 

certificate.

21 Scope of Work 2.4.4.d TPA shall review the SLA performance on a 

quarterly basis and compute penalty for SLA 

non-compliance on the quarterly payment to be 

paid to the DCO in line with the agreed SLAs 

and payment terms & conditions. 

Is TPA allowed to retain its auditor(s) in all of the SDCs 

throughout the year for 5 years if required necessary by 

the TPA. Or is this an arrangement requiring specific 

states’ permission post empanelment?

Please refer to Form -7.  It says, "At least two 

qualified resources with minimum qualification are 

required to be positioned at respective State/UT for 

the entire duration of 5 years."

21 Scope of Work 2.4.4.g Helpdesk must be implemented in line with ITIL 

leading practices for service delivery and must 

necessarily be integrated with the EMS for 

ensuring 360° functionality including monitoring 

and managing. 

Is only audit of helpdesk is being referred to here? Yes

22 Technical 

Evaluation

5.2.5 Offices in number of states Can the bidder bid for states where they don’t have a 

presence 

Yes


